
City Council Minutes                         1 of 8 July 2, 2014 

Regular Meeting  
July 2, 2014  

Martinez, CA  
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
Mayor Schroder called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers with all 
members present.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (Closed Session Items Only)  
 
Gay Gerlack stated that she was impressed by the support for Acting Police Chief Eric Ghisletta 
from Police Officers and Reserves and the community through many emails. She finds it good 
management to promote people who have gone through the ranks. 
 
Al Boyce said it baffles him that there is a slow-down in filling the leadership position in the 
Police Department. It is a big concern if there is an emergency and there is no firm leadership. It 
leads to chaos. He stated that Martinez deserves the best and feels that Eric is the best. 
 
George Opton has known Eric for a long time and everyone he has talked to has a high respect 
for Eric and he is the man for the job. 
 
Resaun DeYuan is a member of CERT and stated that Eric has their full support. 
 
Beth Churchill stated that Eric is committed to the community. She stated that she held a party 
and the topic of discussion was the Chief of Police. Their impression is that when a Police Chief 
is hired from the outside it does not work well. She believes that Eric is trusted by the 
community and the one for the job. 
 
Mayor Schroder stated that there will be no decision made tonight. He indicated that what is 
important is that we go through a process. When the Council was looking for an Interim City 
Manager, there was criticism because a process was not in place, and that is what the Council 
will be discussing in closed session. It is unfortunate that this has become a political issue. We 
are trying to do what is best for this City. Mayor Schroder noted that someone mentioned a delay 
in appointment, retired Chief of Police Gary Peterson has just retired two weeks ago and that is 
why we have started the deliberation with the hope to appoint someone. 
 
Adjourned to closed session at 6:10 p.m.  
 
CLOSED SESSION  
 
A. CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO CAL. GOV’T CODE SECTION 54957: PUBLIC 

EMPLOYMENT -- Title: Police Chief and Interim Police Chief
 
RECONVENE - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - ROLL CALL  
 
The meeting reconvened at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers with all members present except 
for Councilmember Ross. Mayor Schroder reported that a Closed Session was held regarding 
Public Employment concerning Police Chief and Interim Police Chief and there was nothing to 
report. 



City Council Minutes                         2 of 8 July 2, 2014 

Councilmember DeLaney noted for the record that she did not support the interview process 
discussed by the City Council and would not participate in interviews of outside candidates. She 
expressed support for Acting Chief of Police Ghisletta and felt the process would be 
disrespectful to him and the department and undermining to the City's public safety.  
 
PRESENT: AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember, Lara DeLaney, Councilmember, Michael 

Menesini, Vice Mayor, and Rob Schroder, Mayor. 
EXCUSED: None. 
ABSENT: Mark Ross, Councilmember. 
 
PRESENTATION(S)  
 
A. Certificate of Recognition to Thomas Zamaria, former Veterans’ Commissioner.
 
Mayor Schroder presented a Certificate of Recognition and expressed the Council's appreciation 
to Thomas Zamaria for his public service. Mayor Schroder also presented a Certificate on behalf 
of Congressman Miller. 
 
Mr. Zamaria expressed his appreciation to the Council and City staff, especially Robin Agostino, 
Barbara Patchin and Public Works employee Dan Koepke and his wife Debbie. He expressed his 
appreciation to George Miller and his staff for their assistance with veterans' needs and the 
Veterans' Commission. He also introduced Shane Bower, who was present from the 
Commission, and Dave Jackson.  
 
B. Main Street Martinez Presentation
 
John Curtis, President of Main Street Martinez, and Terry Edwards, Vice President, presented 
their semi-annual report. Mr. Curtis acknowledged some volunteers in the audience, including 
Barbara Kapsalis and Gay Gerlack. He noted that Leanne Peterson was not able to be present. He 
expressed appreciation for them and the rest of the 300 volunteers who work through Main Street 
Martinez to make the downtown a better place for everyone. He expressed his appreciation to the 
City Council and City staff and to Main Street's sponsors for their continued support. 
 
Mr. Curtis presented a PowerPoint presentation discussing the last six months' accomplishments, 
including Main Street's 4 Point Approach to economic revitalization, promotions for vacant 
properties in downtown, recent events and business education workshops, Benjamin Moore's 
"Paint What Matters" Project, co-operative advertising for businesses and the Farmers Market. 
 
Mr. Edwards reviewed new initiatives, future events and projects, including a new downtown 
gift card program, a seasonal banner program, the Bay Area Blues Festival and Dia de los 
Muertos (Day of the Dead). He announced that volunteers are always needed and encouraged all 
to attend their annual meeting on July 17th. Mr. Edwards expressed his appreciation to the City 
Council and staff for all their continued support. 
Councilmember Avila Farias thanked Mr. Curtis and Mr. Edwards for their work and stated she 
was looking forward to the Dia de los Muertos event. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney expressed her appreciation to the Board and all the volunteers and 
expressed enthusiasm for upcoming events.  



City Council Minutes                         3 of 8 July 2, 2014 

Vice Mayor Menesini stated the Council fully supports Main Street Martinez's great work. 
 
Mayor Schroder recognized Ms. Peterson for her leadership and hard work on behalf of the City.  
 
C. Martinez Chamber of Commerce Presentation.
 
Adam Hoffert, Chamber of Commerce president, presented the Chamber's annual report and 
discussed its partnership with Main Street Martinez. Mr. Hoffert noted the Chamber is a 
volunteer organization encompassing the entire City. He expressed his appreciation to the 
Council for their support. He noted that the main event run by the Chamber and Main Street is 
the annual Mayor's Cup Golf Tournament, which will be held in October at Pine Meadows at 
night. Mr. Hoffert discussed the Chamber's monthly meeting with Interim City Manager 
Simpson, Visitor Center Metrics for the last fiscal year and recent events and programs 
(including ten Business Mixers, Educational Series, eight ribbon cutting ceremonies, Citizens of 
the Year Event, State of the City Breakfast, King of the County Barbecue, and the Martinez 
Martini Month). He reviewed the results of the Martini on the Plaza survey. 
 
Mr. Hoffert also reviewed new programs promoting local business including commercial real 
estate listings on the Chamber's website, the weekly classified advertisement and the bi-weekly 
email newsletters. He expressed his appreciation to City staff for all their assistance and 
recognized the Chamber's Executive Director John Stevens. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney commended the Chamber for the progress it had made, the volunteers' 
hard work and the successful relationship with Main Street. 
 
Mayor Schroder congratulated the Chamber for successfully growing its membership.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (COMPLETE SPEAKER CARD AND GIVE TO CLERK)  
Reserved only for those requesting to speak on items not listed on the Agenda.  
 
Barbara Kapsalis spoke against the removal of the rock benches at Susana Park, asserting they 
are artistically valuable. She suggested alternative changes for the park. She requested that a no 
loitering sign be posted at the park. Mayor Schroder stated the PRMCC should look into the 
suggestions. 
 
Guy Cooper, Martinez Environmental, spoke about a letter campaign regarding "Crude by Rail". 
He asked the City to join in the effort. 
 
Noralea Gipner also supported keeping the rock benches at Susana Park. 
 
Mike Alford expressed support for the rock benches. He thanked Mayor Schroder and Vice 
Mayor Menesini for taking the time to speak with Talbert Howard, who wants to bring his 
industry to Martinez. He noted this would provide jobs and revenue for the City. He also 
announced that he will not run for Mayor, but he will run for City Council.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
A. Motion waiving reading of text of all Resolutions and Ordinances.
 



City Council Minutes                         4 of 8 July 2, 2014 

1. Motion approving the City Council Minutes of June 4, 2014. [M.Cabral]  
 

2. Motion rejecting Claim against the City by Kaitlin Valdez Milton, #14-08. [M.Cabral]  
 

3. Resolution No. 074-14 approving Agreements with the Martinez Chamber of Commerce 
and Main Street Martinez and authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute same. 
[M.Chandler/07.02.01&9.12.04]  
 

4. Resolution No. 075-14 authorizing destruction of City records pertaining to the City Clerk’s 
Office and Personnel Division. [M.Cabral/40.10.01]  
 

5. Resolution No. 076-14 accepting the Martinez Intermodal Facility Phase III, Parking Lot 
Improvements Project per contract documents and instruct the City Clerk to file a Notice of 
Completion. [T.Tucker/6.7.00]  

 
6. Resolution No. 077-14 accepting the LED Street Light Upgrade Project (EEC1) per contract 

documents and instruct the City Clerk to file a Notice of Completion. [T.Tucker/12.01.00]  
 
Councilmember Avila Farias requested Item #7 be removed for discussion. 
 
On motion by Michael Menesini, Vice Mayor, seconded by Lara DeLaney, Councilmember, to 
approve Item A and Items #1 through #6 of the Consent Calendar. Motion unanimously passed 4 
- 0. Yes: AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember; Lara DeLaney, Councilmember; Michael 
Menesini, Vice Mayor; Rob Schroder, Mayor. Absent: Mark Ross, Councilmember. 
 
7. Resolution No. 078-14 amending the fiscal year 2013-14 Budget and approving a Budget 

Adjustment in the amount of $204,000. [A.Shear/2.10.00]  
 
Councilmember Avila Farias asked for clarification on the second paragraph of the staff report 
since the City does not buy out 4850s. Assistant City Manager Alan Shear clarified that the 
paragraph should read "in lieu of salary continuation." Councilmember Avila Farias asked if the 
accrued sick leave would also be credited to the employee's service time in PERS, and Mr. Shear 
stated the retiring employees have an option of cashing it out or converting it to service time. 
Councilmember Avila Farias asked that this issue be revisited in the future to ensure better 
financial sustainability and reduce the need for mid-year budget adjustments. 
 
Vice Mayor Menesini suggested the City staff work on policies for employment contracts so this 
does not happen again.  
 
On motion by Lara DeLaney, Councilmember, seconded by Michael Menesini, Vice Mayor, to 
approve Resolution No. 078-14 amending the fiscal year 2013-14 Budget and approving a 
Budget Adjustment in the amount of $204,000. Motion unanimously passed 4 - 0. Yes: 
AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember; Lara DeLaney, Councilmember; Michael Menesini, 
Vice Mayor; Rob Schroder, Mayor.  Absent: Mark Ross, Councilmember. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING(S)  
 
 



City Council Minutes                         5 of 8 July 2, 2014 

CITY MANAGER  
 
8. Motion directing staff to bring before Council for consideration at the July 16, 2014 

meeting 6-month extensions to the City’s lease and sublease agreements with the Bisio 
Trust and Onstage Repertory Theater, respectively, for use of the Premises located at 636 
Ward Street, and amend the FY 2014-15 Budget with a budget transfer from Unassigned 
Fund Balance in the amount of $27,822. [AG.Simpson/9.12.07]  

 
Assistant City Manager Alan Shear presented the staff report. He explained the history of the 
City's lease and sublease on the property and highlighted the success of the Onstage Repertory 
Theater and the improvements planned by the theater company. Staff is proposing a lease 
extension to allow the improvements to be completed and to begin exploring other options such 
as the City purchasing the property.  
 
Mr. Mark Hinds, Onstage Repertory Theater, stated the theater's audience has nearly doubled and 
a packed fall season is planned.  
 
Mayor Schroder asked for details on the planned improvements. Mr. Hinds stated that some of 
the seating would be improved and the sound booth would be moved to improve the audience's 
experiences. He added Onstage has already spent about $4,000 on repairs to the building and is 
in the process of building a movie screen. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney asked about audience numbers. Mr. Hinds stated that average 
attendance has increased from about 30 people per show to over 50. 
 
Mr. Shear noted that the actual budget impact was expected to be less than the $27,822 requested 
because it would be offset by revenue generated by the theater.  
 
On motion by Michael Menesini, Vice Mayor, seconded by Lara DeLaney, Councilmember, to 
approve direction to staff to bring before Council for consideration at the July 16, 2014 meeting 
6-month extensions to the City's lease and sublease agreements with the Bisio Trust and Onstage 
Repertory Theater, respectively, for use of the Premises located at 636 Ward Street, and amend 
the FY 2014-15 Budget with a budget transfer from Unassigned Fund Balance in the amount of 
$27,822. Motion unanimously passed 4 - 0. Yes: AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember; Lara 
DeLaney, Councilmember; Michael Menesini, Vice Mayor; Rob Schroder, Mayor.  Absent: 
Mark Ross, Councilmember. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney stated she appreciated Onstage's good financial management and its 
success in bringing people downtown, but she was concerned about the amount of money spent 
on the lease over the years. She suggested the City pursue other options at the end of the six-
month extension. 
Vice Mayor Menesini agreed and stated it would bring more stability if the building was a City 
facility. 
 
Councilmember Avila Farias expressed concern about the sustainability of the City's support of 
artistic programs and hoped there would be a more viable plan in the future.  
 
 



City Council Minutes                         6 of 8 July 2, 2014 

9. Consider a resolution approving the Economic Stimulus Program, and direct staff to 
negotiate an agreement(s) relating thereto with qualifying business(es) for consideration of 
Council approval at subsequent meeting(s). [AG.Simpson/9.19.00]

 
Interim City Manager Simpson presented the staff report. This program will provide incentives 
to certain businesses in order to stimulate existing businesses and encourage the creation of new 
ones, and to diversify the City's tax base. She explained the types of business and industry that 
would be targeted by the program and the qualifications that would have to be met. She also 
reviewed the requirements and the stipulations built into the agreements to protect the City.  
Mayor Schroder noted this program was modeled after one recently approved by the Fairfield 
City Council, and many other neighboring cities have one as well. The program applies only to 
"business to business" operations and retail companies would not be included. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney asked for a clarification of the $200,000 threshold. Ms. Simpson 
clarified that the program only applies to companies generating at least $200,000 in revenue for 
the first 18 months 50% of all sales tax would be rebated, and from then until the end of the 
agreement, 50% of the tax on all revenue above $200,000 would be rebated. Councilmember 
DeLaney asked why no distinction was made between existing businesses and new businesses, 
and Ms. Simpson stated there are only two businesses in the City that currently meet the criteria. 
One is already involved in a sales tax sharing agreement with the City, and the other has 
indicated it may be moving soon. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney asked how the plans for tax base expansion would be submitted and 
evaluated. Ms. Simpson stated it would be worked out with the companies and stipulated in the 
individual agreements, which would come before the Council for approval. Councilmember 
DeLaney asked how the end date was determined and Ms. Simpson stated staff felt five years 
would be a good trial period for the program, and the agreements could be extended if 
successful.  
 
Mayor Schroder opened public comment on the Item. 
 
Mike Alford provided suggestions of companies the City could pursue agreements with, which 
would not only bring in business-to-business industry but would have the potential to attract 
retail stores as well and help keep residents shopping in the City. 
 
Seeing no further speakers, Mayor Schroder closed public comment on the Item.  
 
Vice Mayor Menesini stated he does not support sales tax sharing programs because it harms the 
ability of businesses to compete in a level playing field. Unfortunately Martinez has to be able to 
compete with other cities that are drawing away businesses using this tactic. He suggested that 
the vetting process for the agreements should be transparent and public. 
 
Mayor Schroder expressed hope that the program would be successful in attracting new 
businesses. 
 
Councilmember DeLaney stated she could not support the program with no threshold for the first 
18 months, since it is important to preserve the City's tax base, especially if they are not 
generating enough revenue to be valuable to the City. She suggested a one-time rebate would be 
better for existing businesses. 



City Council Minutes                         7 of 8 July 2, 2014 

Vice Mayor Menesini stated that different businesses will be in different situations, and it is 
important for the program to reflect that by being flexible. 
 
Mayor Schroder noted only one existing business would be able to take advantage of the 
agreement, and it is possible that without the program the City might lose all of its revenue if the 
entire business ends up relocating. The benefit of a program like this is creating economic 
activity and attracting more businesses. 
 
Councilmember Avila Farias expressed support of the program in order to ensure the City stays 
competitive. She appreciated that the Council would have to approve all agreements in order to 
protect the City's interests.  
 
On motion by Michael Menesini, Vice Mayor, seconded by AnaMarie Avila Farias, 
Councilmember, to approve Consider a resolution approving the Economic Stimulus Program, 
and direct staff to negotiate an agreement(s) relating thereto with qualifying business(es) for 
consideration of Council approval at subsequent meeting(s) and any agreement proposed to be 
entered into through this program come before the City Council. Motion passed 3 - 1. Yes: 
AnaMarie Avila Farias, Councilmember; Michael Menesini, Vice Mayor; Rob Schroder, Mayor. 
No: Lara DeLaney, Councilmember. Absent: Mark Ross, Councilmember  
 
10. City Manager Comment(s)/Update(s)/Report(s).
 
Interim City Manager Simpson encouraged the public to attend the 4th of July event in Martinez.  
 
CHIEF OF POLICE  
 
11. Chief of Police Comment(s)/Update(s)/Report(s).
 
Acting Police Chief Eric Ghisletta stated that the 4th of July Parade will be at 10:00 a.m. 
downtown with fireworks at dusk. He encouraged the public to be patient because the parking is 
limited. He emphasized that private fireworks are illegal and hazardous. The Fire Department is 
reporting fire conditions right now that are similar to late September. Chief Ghisletta reminded 
the public to use good judgment and enjoy the 4th. 
 
APPOINTMENTS TO COMMISSIONS AND/OR AGENCIES  
 
CITY COUNCIL  
 
12. Council Subcommittee Reports.
 
13. City Council Comments. 
 
Councilmember Lara DeLaney urged the Council to take up the "Crude by Rail" issue to draw 
more attention to information about the transport of dangerous substances in Martinez. She stated 
that the transport of hazardous materials by rail is vastly increasing, and the City needs to be 
prepared for any type of emergency. She expressed concern as well about the need to preserve at 
least some of the stone benches at Susana Park and remove some of the obstacles for the sake of 
public safety. Councilmember DeLaney wished everyone a wonderful and safe 4th of July and 
hoped all would take advantage of the pancake breakfast at Roxx on Main Street at 9:00 a.m. 
 



City Council Minutes                         8 of 8 July 2, 2014 

Councilmember AnaMarie Avila Farias stated that the Public Safety Subcommittee is addressing 
the Crude by Rail issue, and meetings have been scheduled in the coming weeks with input from 
Acting Chief of Police Ghisletta. The Committee will be attending a training and will hopefully 
have an update for the Council thereafter. Councilmember Avila Farias stated she will share the 
concerns over Susana Street Park with the landscape architect and City Engineer Tim Tucker to 
see if the Parks, Recreation, Marina and Cultural Commission can reconsider the design. 
 
Vice Mayor Michael Menesini agreed that the Council needs to be a strong advocate for public 
safety and noted one challenge is that the City is not always notified when hazardous materials 
are passing through. Vice Mayor Menesini confirmed that both Acting Chief Ghisletta and the 
Fire Chief are working on improving this communication. He thanked Barbara Kapsalis for her 
comments and pictures of Susana Street Park, but also noted he understands the reason behind 
the design to improve access to the stage. He also expressed appreciation for the Chamber of 
Commerce's work as an asset to the community.  Vice Mayor Menesini expressed strong 
disagreement with Councilmember DeLaney's comments on the Police Chief selection process. 
He expressed his opinion that the selection of a Police Chief is an important task that should be 
taken seriously and politics should not be involved. 
 
Mayor Rob Schroder wished all a wonderful and safe 4th of July.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Adjourned at 8:50 p.m. to a Regular City Council Meeting on July 16, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers, 525 Henrietta Street, Martinez, California.  
 

Approved by the City Coudncil 
 
 
Rob Schroder, Mayor 
 
Mercy G. Cabral, Deputy City Clerk – 9/3/14 


